
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

 NOVEMBER 21, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / November 7, 2011   

                                                   Special Called Council meeting minutes / November 14, 2011 

                                                   Council Work Session minutes / November 14, 2011 

                                                   Special Called Council meeting minutes / November 16, 2011 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:   Mercy Medical TEFRA (Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act) Hearing / 
                                         Resolution 2011-78 

 

CHANGE JANUARY 2 & 16, 2012 COUNCIL MEETING DATE DUE TO HOLLIDAYS 

 

VOTE ON DISTRICT #1 COUNCIL SEAT VACANCY 

 

                                                       

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware  

          1.)  Ordinances: 

                 Community Contributions / MBNEP –FY12 / Ordinance 2011-82 

  

          2.)  Resolutions: 

                 Declare City Property Surplus / Resolution 2011-79 

 

          3.)  Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / October 31, 2011 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / September 30, 2011 

 Lodging Tax Collections / September 30, 2011 

 Lodging Tax Fund Summary / September 2011 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake                  

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware       

           Review minutes / November 9
th
  

 

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese 

           Review minutes / November 9
th
  

 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Lake     

          Nomination:  Environmental Advisory Board / John Peterson 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette        

    C.  Industrial Development Board –        

    D.  Library Board – Lake      

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette  

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

          Review minutes / June 29
th

  

 
 1



 

COUNCIL  MEETING AGENDA                                NOVMEBER 21, 2011                       PAGE  2    

 

 

 
6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report       
           a.)  Alabama Tourism Grant     

           b.)  Authorize Mayor to send letter to Congressman Bonner / Regarding BP Oil Spill 

           c.)  Approve Parade Permit / Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / February 10, 2012 / Rain Date - February 16, 2012 

           d.)  Approve Parade Permit / Shadow Barons / February 18, 2012 / Rain Date - February 19, 2012 

           e.)  Approve parade Permit / Mystic Order of Persephone / February 17, 2012 / Rain Date - February 19, 2012 

           f.)  Approve Parade Permit / Loyal Order of the Fire Truck / February 19, 2012 

 

B. City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Mercy Medical TEFRA Bond Approval. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-78 

 

b.)   Declare Certain Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-79 

         

  ORDINANCES: 

 

      2
ND

 
 
READ 

a.)   Rescinding Hiring Freeze Enacted December 20, 2010. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-80 

 

b.)  Adopting the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-81 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 

c.)  Community Contributions / MBNEP. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-82 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   

                                  

COUNCILMAN YELDING     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR SMALL    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given Councilman Scott. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Cathy Barnette; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware. 

 

ABSENT: John Lake; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Richard Johnson, 

Publics Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; 

Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Jane Ellis, Mayors 

Assistant; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Officer Shawn Barnette, Police 

Department; John Williams, Civic Center; Scott Hutchinson, City Engineer; Al Guarisco, Village Point 

Foundation; Willie Robison, BZA. 

 

Absent:  Kim Briley, Finance Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that Mr. Lake was representing the city at the National League of Cities 

Conference, and Mr. Palumbo was out of town. 

 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the October 17, 2011 Special Called Council 

meeting minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott.  

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR              NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

PRESENTATION/PROCLAMATION:  America Recycles / November 15, 2011 / Daphne Recycles 

                                                                       Program 

 

Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, gave the presentation on the recycling program. Council 

President Barnette read and presented the proclamation to Mr. Johnson. 

 

 

 

 

 

 5



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

PRESENTATON:  Bookmark Contest Winners / Daphne Public Library 

 

Ms. Tonja Young, Library Director, and Mayor Yelding presented the award to the third place winner 

in the teen division Sydney Omtvedt.  Ms. Young said several of the winners could not be present due 

to school activities. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Baldwin County Training School Heritage Fest 91 Foundation / Gartrell Agee 

 

The Foundation presented an Outstanding Student plaque to Mayor Yelding who was in the Class of 

1957 in honor of being the first black mayor of Daphne. 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

Annexation: Audubon Holding, LLC 

Property Located: Southeast of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road 

Present Zoning: RMF-6, Multiple Family District in Baldwin County District 15 

Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable 

 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones gave the presentation. 

 

Council President Barnette opened the Public Hearing at 6:49 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the proposed annexation. 

 

Council President Barnette closed the Public Hearing at 6:50 p.m. 

 

 

VOTE ON ORDINANCE 2011-79 / ANNEXATION: AUDUBON HOLDING, LLC 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2011-79.  

Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Reese Aye 

Scott Aye 

Boulware Aye 

Barnette Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
6



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-79.  Seconded by 

Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-79.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

HEARING:  Right-of-Way Ordinance Violation Ordinance 2004-23 / Richard Johnson, Public Works  

                      Director  

 

Mr. Johnson gave the presentation of the violation which was putting lamp post in the city’s right-of-

way.  Mr. Johnson presented a slide show with drawings and plans of the site. 

 

Mr. Patel presented his case saying he was not aware of the violation.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to uphold the Public Works Director’s interpretation of the 

ordinance, and go forward with whatever legal process that the city will have to do.  Seconded by 

Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

SET DATE:  Closing date for accepting resumes for the District #1 Council Seat vacancy 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set the closing date of Friday, November 11, 2011 for 

accepting resumes for the District #1 Council Seat vacancy .  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

Council discussed that that date was a holiday for the city. 

 

Councilman Scott amended the date to November 14, 2011 at 12:00 noon for the closing date to 

accept resumes for the District #1 Council Seat vacancy.  Councilman Boulware accepted the 

amendment. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 7



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

SET DATE:  Interviews for the District #1 Council Seat Vacancy 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Special Called Council meeting for Wednesday, 

November 16, 2011 6:30 p.m. for interviewing applicants for the District #1 Council Seat 

Vacancy.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report. 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The minutes for the October 3
rd

 meeting are in the packet.  No report. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the October 12
th

 meeting are in the packet. No report. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

No report.  Councilman Scott stated that they have certain procedures that they have not codified, such 

as they require an audited financial statement for the community contributions, and he does not think 

that they have put that in resolution or motion form, but they also require a resume for the committee 

members, and he would like to see that cleaned up in case they ever get challenged over it at least they 

will have something to hang their hat on.  He said that the City Clerk could take care of getting this 

done. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Lake 

Nomination:  Environmental Advisory Board: Fred Nation 

Nomination:  Environmental Advisory Board: Carl A. Pinyerd, III 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to appoint Fred Nation and Carl A. Pinyerd  to the 

Environmental Advisory Board.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Councilman Yelding asked Councilman Boulware to submit a resume for Mr. Fred Nation for the 

Environmental Advisory Board. 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The minutes for the October 6
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting is December 1
st
 at 6:00 

p.m. 

 8



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The Authority met 2 weeks ago for a visioning meeting of Olde Towne Daphne at Vino e Bira.  The 

minute for the last meeting will be in the next packet. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board –  
The council will wait until the December 5

th
 council meeting to select a liaison to the board.  

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

No report. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Adrienne Jones 

The minutes for the September 22
nd

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing date for December 19, 2011 to consider: 

 

Annexation: Well Road Right-of-Way 

Location:  Approximately 1,324 linear feet of an unimproved portion of the right-of-way of   

                                 Well Road and the northeast portion of the Gipson Tract 

Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable 

 

Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

Site Preview meeting is Wednesday at 10:00 a.m.  This will be the time for the Site Preview meeting from 

now on. 

 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

No report. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The minutes for the August 31
st
, September 21

st
 and September 28

th
 meetings are in the packet.  

 

MOTION:  Appoint Mayor Yelding to the Utility Board for the remainder of the previous Mayor’s 

term 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to appoint Mayor Yelding to the Utility Board for the 

remainder of the previous Mayor’s term.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 9



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

         1.)  MOTION:  Authorize the Mayor to enter into a cooperative maintenance agreement with the  

                                   Alabama Department of Transportation for maintenance of the Right-of-Way of  

                                   State Route 181 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize the Mayor to enter into a cooperative maintenance 

agreement with the Alabama Department of Transportation for maintenance of the Right-of-

way of State Route 181.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

Mayor Yelding invited everyone to the Veteran’s Day Program at City Hall on Friday at 10:00 a.m. 

 

 

 B.  City Attorney Report 

Mr. Ross stated that the lawsuit that they discussed a week or two ago Mrs. Barnette has asked that it be 

carried over to an Executive Session next Monday night so, hopefully, all councilmembers can be there,  

This is the Scott Curtis litigation. It has been reset for trial, and as a practical matter next week after 

Executive Session to approve or not approve as the case may be. The trial is set for the first week in 

December.  There are two (2) other matters that will require Executive Session as well, and if it pleases 

the council at the next meeting to call a special meeting primarily in case they vote on the litigation 

matters that has to be in public forum. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to call a Special Called Council meeting on November 14, 2011 

6:30 p.m. before the regularly scheduled Work Session to discuss pending litigation. Seconded by 

Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

C. Department Head Comments 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that they are actively working Highway 181 for accidents 

and traffic. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that the Black & White Ball event was sold out. 

She said that there are several events coming up, and citizens can check the Civic Center website to 

see upcoming events.  

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that there will be a Rec Board meeting Wednesday.  

The Christmas Parade will be December 2
nd

.  The Trojans will be playing in Prattville this week, and 

basketball season starts tonight. 

 10



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that they are ready to expand the office space and living quarters 

at Fire Station #4. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported the change in garbage and recycle pickup due 

to the Veteran’s Day holiday Friday.  He said they have lot of names on the list for the Environmental 

Advisory Board, and they will meet Monday, November 28
th

 at city hall. 

 

 Adrienne Jones – Planning Director – reported that the Planning Commission will meet next 

Thursday, November 17
th

 at 5:00 p.m.  

 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Business owner in the City of Daphne – spoke regarding recycling. 

 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – spoke regarding Veterans Day. 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS 
 

 

ORDINANCES: 

         

       2
ND

 
 
READ 

a.)  Rezone: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity / Lot 1, Dunmore Subdv. 

       Phase Two, Part C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-70 

 

b.)  Rezone: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity / Lot 2, Dunmore Subdv. 

       Phase Two, Part C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-71 

 

c.)  Rezone: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity / Lot 3, Dunmore Subdv. 

       Phase Two, Part C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-72 

 

d.)   Revision to Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Ordinance 2011-73 

 

e.)  Appropriation of Funds: Feasibility Study: Transfer Station –  

       Garbage. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-75 

 

f.)   Appropriation of Funds: Justice Center Roof Repairs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-76 

 

g.)   Appropriation of Funds: PW Crew Cab Trucks. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-77 

 

h.)   Appropriation of Funds: Fuel Management System. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-78 11



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

1
ST

 READ 
i.)   Annexation:  Audubon Park Apartments, Phase One. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-79 

 

j.)   Rescinding Hiring Freeze Enacted December 20, 2010. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-80 

 

k.)  Adopting the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-81 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-70, 2011-71 and 2011-

72.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR            NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt  Ordinances 2011-70, 2011-71 and 2011-72.  Seconded by 

Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-73.  Seconded by 

Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt ordinance 2011-73.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-75, 2011-76, 2011-77 

and 2011-78.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt of Ordinances 2011-75, 2011-76, 2011-77 and 2011-78.  

Seconded by Councilman Boulware.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

ORDINANCE 2011-79 WAS VOTED ON EARLIER IN THE MEETING. 
 

ORDINANCES 2011-80, 2011-81 WERE MADE 1
ST

 READ. 
 12



NOVEMBER 7, 2011 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Yelding thanked the staff saying they are great, and he has had two (2) staff meetings, and they were 

joyful. He said that they are all special, and he will continue to work hard. 

 

Council President Barnette reminded council that the Jubilee Breeze is wrapping up for the January 

through June issue, and encouraged them to get items to Mrs. Ellis by next week. 

 

Councilman Scott reminded everyone that the Mama Mia Cook Off is Saturday. 

 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Reese to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

13



NOVEMBER 14, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 A.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cathy Barnette; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August 

Palumbo. 

 

ABSENT: John Lake. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic 

Center Director; James White, Fire Chief; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Chip Martin, Fire 

Marshall; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Lt. 

Judd Beedy, Police Department; Officer Todd Gresham, Police Department; Erick Bussey, Attorney; 

Andy Rutens, Attorney representing the city. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending 

litigation.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the reason stated was in compliance with the Open Meetings 

Act.  The Executive Session should last for 30 minutes. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Reese  Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Scott   Aye     Barnette  Aye 

Boulware  Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Council entered into Executive Session at 6:36 p.m. 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 7:33 p.m. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize the mayor and council to approve a settlement with 

Scott Curtis, Earth, Inc. for not more than $500,000 that also includes a tax credit for receiving of a 

parcel, as well as, a dedication of Talent Lane.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 
14



NOVEMBER 14, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

 

2.  ADJOURN 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

 

 
 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                             Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

        _________________________________                                                                              

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President 

 

 

 

15



NOVEMBER 14, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

8:12 P.M.   (AFTER THE SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING) 

 

1 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; 

Derek Boulware; August Palumbo.   

 

ABSENT:  John Lake. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay 

Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources 

Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; James White, Fire Chief; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance 

Director; Chip Martin, Fire Marshall; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Ashley Campbell, 

Environmental Programs Manager; Lt. Judd Beedy, Police Department; Officer Todd Gresham, 

Police Department; Erick Bussey, Attorney. 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 8:12 p.m. 

 

1.)  HUNTINGDON COLLEGE / CANDI LAKE: 

Mrs. Lake gave an update on the progress of the college.  She reinforced Huntingdon College’s 

support for the City of Daphne.  She reported that several from the Daphne area have graduated from 

the college.  She feels the college fills a need in the community in that some people would not be 

able to attend college during the day, and Huntingdon offers night classes which makes it possible. 

 

2. PFIL HUNT / GARDNYER MICHAEL CAPITAL: 
Mr. Hunt spoke representing the Renaissance Center’s Cooperative and Improvement Districts in 

presenting information regarding assessments on the property within the center. They are requesting 

new assessments which will cover the next 30 years, and therefore, they will not have to continually 

come before council for approval.  They have petitioned the land owners, and received approval for 

the assessments.   

 

Council requested the City Attorney to research to see if they need a resolution or ordinance to 

approve the assessments. 

 

3.  EMPLOYEE RESTRUCTURING: 

Council President Barnette stated that they needed to develop a plan to get employee cost down. 

 

Mrs. Hinman stated that she talked with department heads, and they do not see where they could cut 

any positions.  She prepared organizational charts for the mayor.   

 

Several department heads have restructured their department.  The Civic Center eliminated a couple 

of positions and combined them into one position, Court and the Library have also done some 

restructuring. 

 

Council would like the department heads to do an organizational chart that is their wish list of how 

they would like their department structured as if they were starting with a clean slate.  Maybe they  

 

16



NOVEMBER 14, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

8:12 P.M.   (AFTER THE SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING) 

 

2 

 

would like to eliminate one position that is not really needed and request two positions that are 

needed etc., and when the position becomes vacant then they could eliminate the one position and  

implement the new positions. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that the control of employee cost can come through attrition, and 

they are not looking to lay employees off. 

 

4.  EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN / CHIP MARTIN: 

Mr. Martin gave a presentation of the plan.  This is the plan that council authorized to be paid for 

with BP funds.  They held a table top exercise using the plan, and went back and did some tweaking, 

and council has the finished product before them.  The plan is for all hazards.  They can go back and 

make changes when needed, but this is a good foundation. Mr. Martin stated that Mr. Johnson has a 

supplement to the plan where he outlines a step by step, hour by hour implementation of the plan. 

 

Council President Barnette wanted to wait for a while before it goes on the agenda for adoption to 

give council more time to read the plan. 

 

5.   CAPITAL ROAD PROJECTS FY 2012-2015 PRIORITY LIST / RICHARD JOHNSON: 

Mr. Johnson handed council a packet of information regarding paving the roads in Daphne.  He 

reprioritized the former list, and explained his reasoning behind the decision.  The top three (3) on 

the list are Whispering Pines & US Hwy 98 intersection: turn lanes and signalization; Main Street 

resurfacing from College Avenue to Bay Front Drive; and Well Road Extension from Public Works 

Road to County Road 13.  He asked council for guidance on how to proceed. 

 

Council does not want to stop the momentum in Lake Forest.  They need to keep something going 

there at all times. 

 

Mayor Yelding suggested that a re-evaluation of Mr. Eady’s list of worst to least be done. 

 

Councilman Scott recommended that Mr. Johnson present the three (3) projects to the Finance 

Committee, and they will make a recommendation and send to council. 

 

NOTE: Council took a five (5) minute break. 

 

6.   FY2012 BUDGET: 

 

Councilman Boulware stated this goes back earlier to the discussion about the capital budget, the 

elusive, and rarely identified capital budget, they have never nailed down a place, date and a time 

that they passed one.  They seem to trickle in through the year.  He was not at the Finance meeting 

this afternoon, but on the agenda was the letting of bids on several items that are in the capital 

budget. This is his thought, and apparently council got away from discussing the capital budget 

along with the operating budget. He would like to see council go ahead and identify time and place 

to discuss and pass the capital budget for the next year like they do the operating budget.  They have 

the day of October 1 that they have extended now, but he thinks from a financial planning standpoint 

it would be smarter than what they are doing right now. He thinks what they are doing is  

17



NOVEMBER 14, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

8:12 P.M.   (AFTER THE SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING) 

 

3 

 

kind of getting to it when they feel like it attitude.  Their feet are under the fire, so to speak, when 

dealing with operating it is what keeps the lights on and employees paid. He thinks they need to take 

capital budgeting as seriously as they take the operating budget side.   They are looking at millions 

upon millions of dollars just in road work identified and not identified on top of five vehicles for the 

Police Department every year, they have untold amount of vehicle and equipment purchases coming 

out of Public Works so he thinks it is a good time to talk about this since they are discussing big 

ticket items like road improvements.  Once they get past the 2012 operating budget he thinks it is 

important going forward that they identify a time that they are going to pass the capital budget, and 

they know what they are going to do with it.  

 

The deficit in the budget is $354,130 for 2012.  Council discussed how to make that up. 

 

The plan right now is to take the money from the reserves, and have a mid-year review. 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones wanted council to be aware that her department had already been restructured, 

and one position had been eliminated and the duties of that position have been given to another 

position, and she will be requesting an increase of pay for that position through the process with 

Human Resources.  She wanted council to know this before adopting the budget so it would not be 

sprung on them afterwards. 

 

7.   COUNCIL OFFICERS 

Councilman Scott suggested that they needed to amend the way that they elect the officers based 

upon what they have done in the past, and what the Ethics Commission said, and according to 

Roberts Rules of Order that if you have seven people you are going to have to get four (4) votes, and 

so if you have two (2) people nominated that means that it cannot get four.  He said what they need 

to do is pass an ordinance that changes that to say that it would take a simple majority of the people 

voting. 

 

Council asked the City Attorney to research a procedure for electing officers. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she sent the questions submitted by council to the candidates 

for District #1 council seat so they will be seeing some answers come back, but she does not know 

how quickly they will be returned.  She also commented on articles for the Jubilee Breeze.  She said 

that each council member has the opportunity to submit an article for their district, but the rule is that 

they all have to submit an article it cannot be just one, if only one article is submitted then that 

article is generalized for the whole city, and put in the magazine. 

 

Council said they can put the City Clerk to work on submitting an article for each issue on the 

accomplishments for the council since the last magazine. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

18



NOVEMBER 14, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

8:12 P.M.   (AFTER THE SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING) 

 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3. ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 9:56 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                            
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President        

19



NOVEMBER 16, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 A.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cathy Barnette; John Lake;  Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek 

Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; James White, Fire 

Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police  Department; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Greg White, Public Works; Willie Robison, BZA. 

 

3 VOTES PER COUNCIL MEMBER 

 

                                 NAME                                        VOTES                               TOTAL 

 

Andre McConico 

 

Reese, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

3 

 

James Weekley 

 

 

 

0 

 

Mrs. Tommie Conaway 

 

Reese, Scott, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

4 

 

Willie Williams 

 

Lake 

 

1 

 

Leon Allen 

 

Lake, Scott, Boulware 

 

3 

 

Billy Mayhand 

 

Scott, Boulware 

 

2 

 

Ms. Lynn Mitchell 

Lake, Reese, Boulware, 

Palumbo, Barnette 

 

5 

 

TOP VOTES: Conaway, Mitchell 

TIE Breaker for 3
rd

 Place:  McConico, Allen 
 

TIE BREAKER FOR 3
RD

 PLACE 
 

                               NAME        VOTES                             TOTAL 

 

Andre McConico 

 

Reese, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

3 

   

 

Leon Allen 

 

Lake, Scott, Boulware 

 

3 

 

TIE:  McConico, Allen 
 

20



NOVEMBER 16, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

2 VOTES PER COUNCIL MEMBER 

 

VOTE FOR: 

McConico, Conaway, Allen, Mitchell 

 

                              NAME                                    VOTES                                     TOTAL 

 

Andre McConico 

 

Reese, Scott 

 

2 

 

Mrs. Tommie Conway 

 

Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

3 

 

Leon Allen 

 

Lake, Scott, Boulware 

 

3 

 

Ms. Lynn Mitchell 

 

Lake, Reese, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

4 

 

TOP VOTE: Mitchell 

TIE:  Conaway, Allen 

 

TIE BREAKER FOR 2
ND

 PLACE 

 
                        NAME                                    VOTES                                     TOTAL 

 

Mrs. Tommie Conaway 

 

Reese, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

3 

   

 

Leon Allen 

 

Lake, Scott, Boulware 

 

3 

 
TIE:  Conaway, Allen 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



NOVEMBER 16, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

1 VOTE PER COUNCIL MEMBER 

 

VOTE FOR: 

Conaway, Allen, Mitchell 

 
                        NAME                                    VOTES                                     TOTAL 

 

Mrs. Tommie Conaway 

 

 

 

0 

 

Leon Allen 

 

Lake, Scott, Boulware 

 

3 

 

Ms. Lynn Mitchell 

 

Reese, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

3 

 

TIE:  Allen, Mitchell 
 

 

TIE BREAKER  

Allen, Mitchell 

 

 
                        NAME                                    VOTES                                     TOTAL 

 

Leon Allen 

 

Lake, Scott, Boulware 

 

3 

   

 

Ms. Lynn Mitchell 

 

Reese, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

3 

 

TIE:  Allen, Mitchell 

 
 

Council agreed to adjourn and vote again at the November 21, 2011 council meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
22



NOVEMBER 16, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 9:33 p.m. 

 

 
 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                             Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

        _________________________________                                                                              

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President 

 

 

 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



 Page 1 

Public Safety Committee 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011

  

 

   Councilman Derek Boulware                                                                                                            Police Chief David Carpenter 

   Councilman Kelly Reese              Captain Scott Taylor 

   Councilman Ron Scott                                                                                                            Captain Daniel Bell 

   Fire Chief James White                              Tracy Bishop - Secretary 

    Public Works, Melvin McCarley                        
 

 

Committee Members Attending:   
Councilman Derek Boulware, Councilman Kelly Reese, Councilman Ron Scott, Chief David Carpenter, Chief 
James White, and Lt. Alaric Yelding.  
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

 Councilman Boulware convened the meeting at 4:30 p.m.   
        

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None. 
 

 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
Minutes from September 2011, and October 2011 – Councilman Reese made a motion to accept the 
minutes as presented, motion was seconded by Councilman Scott.  

 

  

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
  

A. New Business  - Chief Carpenter went over the stats and D-Runs from September 
2011.  Carpenter explained that we had two robberies in September, one was at BB&T 
Bank where we captured the robber, and the other was at America’s Gold where nothing 
was taken and the robber is still at large.  He explained that the D-Runs were focused on 
the problem areas in the city.  Councilman Reese asked about the possibility of getting a 
crossing guard for the children who live in the subdivisions on the north side of Whispering 
Pines Road near Daphne Middle School so the children could walk to school on the south 
sidewalk.  Chief said he would provide an officer to walk them across if they could agree 
on a certain time to meet at that crosswalk each day for him to walk with them.  Chief 
stated that we have had a school crossing guard job opening for almost a year that we 
cannot fill due to low hours and wages.  Councilman Reese said he’d research it more and 
see how many would be interested. 

 
Chief White stated that it would be beneficial to the fire department if Johnson Road were 
opened up to County Road 13 and Hwy 181 for more East/West traffic and a faster 
response time. 
 
Chief Carpenter asked if the Capital budget had been looked at.  All three council people 
stated that they had not.  Chief doesn’t want to get behind on ordering our replacement 
vehicles like last year.  Mayor Yelding stated that Police and Fire emergency vehicles 
should take priority. 
       

57



 

 Page 2 

B.   Old Business – We have three Tahoe’s complete.  We are actively patrolling Hwy 181.  
We had a shooting today, a woman accidentally shot herself in the thigh. 

   
 

  

 FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

A. New Business –  Chief White went over his stats.  He said that they are in the process of remodeling 
Station 4 with the firefighters doing the work.  Tommy Bertagnolli is retiring at the end 
of December.  Jason Brooks was hired by the University of South Alabama as an 
instructor and will be leaving also. 
 

B. Old Business-  The BP Grant reallocation was denied. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS  
   

   

 ADJOURN   
             

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Boulware adjourned the meeting at 5:00 p.m.  The next 
meeting will be Wednesday, December 14, 2011 at 4:30 p.m. at City Hall Council Chambers. 

         
        Respectfully submitted, 

  Daphne Public Safety Committee 
 
 
 
 
 

58



59



60



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, November 9, 2011 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Kelly Reese       
Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Derek Boulware            
 

I. CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 

 
Members Present: Kelly Reese, Ron Scott, and Derek Boulware 

 

Others Present: David Cohen 
  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
None 

 

III.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 
a.  Waiver of Sewer Tap Fee 

 

Committee asked that this issue be placed on next month’s agenda. 
 

b. Any other actions or discussions deemed necessary for the Ordinance Committee to               

consider. 

 
None 

 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

The committee asked that an ordinance be written that would require audited financials of any 

entity that receives money or in kind services. 
 

The committee asked that an ordinance be written that would require resumes on all applicants 

for boards or vacated council positions. 

 

V.   ADJOURN 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware Seconded by Mr. Reese To adjourn at 5:45 P.M. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR  NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

61



 

62



63



64



65



66



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

67



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers    June 29, 2011    5:00 p.m. 
        

I. CALL TO ORDER 
The regular Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on June 29, 2011 and called to order by 
Vice Chairman Fenton Jenkins, at 5:02 p.m. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 
      MEMBERS PRESENT: Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman 
 Lon Johnston, Secretary/Treasurer 
 Ron Scott           
 Fred Small, Mayor 
 
 OTHERS ABSENT: Robert Segalla, Chairman 

 OTHERS PRESENT: Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney 
  Rob McElroy – General Manager 
  Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager  
  Teresa Logiotatos - Finance Manager  
  Deloris Brown – Human Resources Manager 
  Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 
  Lori Scharles – Executive Assistant 
  Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 
  Doug Bailey – HMR  
  
 OTHERS ABSENT:    

  
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Vice Chairman led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES        

a. Utilities Board Minutes from May25, 2011: 
The Vice Chairman inquired if there were any corrections, deletions or additions noted for the submitted Minutes 
from the May 25, 2011, Utilities Board meeting.  
   

MOTION BY Mayor Fred Small to approve the submitted Minutes for May 25, 2011; Seconded by 

Ron Scott. 

AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SMALL          ABSENT: SEGALLA         ABSTAIN:         

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Central Services Building – Update  

Rob McElroy announced that the project has broken ground and the detention pond is excavated.  Doug Bailey 
updated the Board on the road construction.  

b. Spanish Fort Sewer Franchise issues 68



MINUTES - 2 

No updated information was reported. 

c. Bay Front Park Bathrooms 
Rob McElroy updated the Board that prices have been received however a contract has not been executed as of yet. 

d. Items in Abeyance: 
1. Gas Franchise Agreement – No current information was reported. 

VI. NEW BUSINESS –  
No New Business was reported 
 

VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 Mr. Speegle had nothing further to add to his report but distributed a corrected report.  No comments from the Board. 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 
Teresa Logiotatos reviewed the financials for the Board members.  She advised the Board to be aware of upcoming 
impact fees that will be moved over to the reserve account, as well as reminded them of the upcoming budget process 
and financial module preparation.  Mr. Johnston commented that a separate view within the budget source and use of 
funds. 
 

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. GM Report 
 Rob McElroy had nothing further to add to his report.  He answered comments concerning water restrictions, which 

were not necessary at this point.  Drew Klumpp answered questions from the Board regarding the process of online 
service applications. 

 
b. Operations Report 

Danny Lyndall reported that a follow-up inspection from the Alabama Public Service Commission addressing 4 issues 
from their initial inspection in which two of the four items have been corrected and a schedule for corrections in place 
for the other two items. 

Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates had nothing further to add to her report. 

Doug Bailey of HMR also had nothing further to add to his report. 

X. BOARD ACTION –  None 

XI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  – None 

XII. BOARD COMMENTS – None 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION BY Mayor Fred Small to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Lon Johnston 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SMALL        ABSENT: SEGALLA  ABSTAIN:        

 MOTION CARRIED 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:16 pm.  

69



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

70



71



72



73



74



75



   BAILEY YELDING, JR.                                                        COUNCIL MEMBERS                                                                                              

               MAYOR                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                                                       DISTRICT  1 

      DAVID L. COHEN, MMC                                                                                                                                     CATHY BARNETTE                                                                                                                                                             

             CITY CLERK                                                                                                                                                                      DISTRICT  2 

                                                                                                                                                                                                    JOHN L. LAKE 

       KIMBERLY M. BRILEY                                                                                                                                              DISTRICT  3                                                                                                                                                                

FINANCE DIRECTOR/TREASURER                                                                                                                                KELLY D. REESE 
                                                                                                                                                                                           DISTRICT  4 

    DAVID CARPENTER II                                                                                                                                                             RON SCOTT 

         CHIEF OF POLICE                                                                                                                                                      DISTRICT 5 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         DEREK BOULWARE 

     JAMES “BO” WHITE                                                                                                                                                           DISTRICT  6 

             FIRE CHIEF                                                                                                                                                  AUGUST A. PALUMBO 

                                                                                                                                                                                         DISTRICT  7 

 

November 15, 2011 

The Honorable Congressman Jo Bonner 

2236 Rayburn House Office Building 

Washington, D.C.   20515 

 

Dear Congressman Bonner, 

 

As Mayor of the City of Daphne, on behalf of the City Council and the citizens of this community, I 

welcome the opportunity to provide this letter of support to you and other members of Congress for 

House Bill 3096 – RESTORE ACT as it is presented and debated.  Your continued diligence in helping us 

win a favorable decision remains critical for the true recovery and restoration of a damaged Gulf Coast. 

 

As we continue to rebuild our environment and study the impact on our gulf waters and marine life it is 

imperative that HR 3096 – RESTORE ACT, is passed to ensure that funds for environmental and 

economic recovery are available directly to the five Gulf of Mexico states and in the State of Alabama, 

specifically, to aid the City of Daphne and other coastal cities. 

 

I offer my thanks to you and your staff for the diligent work throughout the BP Deepwater Horizon Oil 

Spill, and appreciate your daily communications, leadership and attention to the matters at hand.  We 

have a strong, resilient community, and we offer our full support and confidence in your office to carry 

this out on behalf of the citizens of Alabama. 

 

Thank you for your continuing hard work on our behalf. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Bailey Yelding, Jr. 

Mayor 

 

Cc: Honorable Richard Shelby 

      Honorable Jeff Sessions  

80



76



77



78



79



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

81



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

82



                   RESOLUTION NO. 2011-78 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, GRANTING TEFRA BOND 

APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTION 147(F) OF THE 

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED 

WHEREAS, The Special Care Facilities Financing Authority of the City of 

Daphne, Villa Mercy (the “Authority”) has been established pursuant to Section 11-62-1 et seq. 

of the Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, to assist nonprofit entities in the financing and 

refinancing of healthcare and related facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore issued its Revenue Bonds (Mercy 

Medical Project), Series 1997 and Series 2000 (collectively, the “Bonds”) for the benefit of 

Mercy Medical, A Corporation, a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

Alabama (the “Corporation”) which owns and operates assisted living facilities, independent 

living facilities and skilled nursing facilities in Daphne and Fairhope, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds were used by the Corporation 

to finance and refinancing capital expenditures at certain skilled nursing and assisted living 

facilities of the Corporation known as Mercy Rehabilitation Hospital and Skilled Nursing 

Facility in Daphne, Alabama, Baldwin County Home Care & Hospice in Daphne, Alabama, 

Carroll Place, as Assisted Living Community in Fairhope, Alabama, Catherine Place, as Assisted 

Living Community in Daphne, Alabama, The Hamlet, an Independent Living Community in 

Fairhope, Alabama and The John McClure Snook Regional Center, a Memory Care Community 

in Daphne, Alabama (collectively, the “Facilities”); and  

WHEREAS, the Corporation has requested the assistance of the Authority and 

the City Council of the City of Daphne with respect to certain requirements of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) relating to the sale of the Facilities; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Code, the Corporation intends to 

keep the Bonds outstanding pursuant to their terms and has elected to utilize the “alternate 

qualified use of proceeds” provisions of the Code whereby the proceeds of the sale of the 

Facilities will be applied by the Corporation to other qualified capital expenditures; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code a public hearing has been 

held on the date hereof on behalf of the Authority (the “TEFRA Hearing”) relating to the 

application of the sale proceeds of the Facility in an amount not exceeding $32,000,000 to the 

alternate qualified uses as more particularly described in the notice of the TEFRA Hearing (the 

“TEFRA Notice”) attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, prior to the TEFRA Hearing, the TEFRA Notice was published in 

The Daphne Bulletin on November 8, 2011 and in the Press-Register (Mobile County) on 

November 7, 2011, as required by Section 147(f) of the Code; and 

 

83



RESOLUTION 2011-78                 MERCY MEDICAL TEFRA                  PAGE  2 

 

WHEREAS, Section 147(f) of the Code requires approval by the City Council of 

the City of Daphne following the TEFRA Hearing of the application of the sale proceeds of the 

Facilities to the alternate qualified uses as described in the TEFRA Notice; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation has requested that the City Council of the City of 

Daphne grant approval of the application of the sale proceeds of the Facilities as described in the 

TEFRA Notice, all as required by Section 147(f) of the Code. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama that, in accordance with the requirements of Section 147(f) of the Code, the 

application and re-allocation of up to $32,000,000 of proceeds of the sale of the Facilities to the 

projects described in the TEFRA Notice attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, in 

accordance with, and as permitted by, the alternate qualified use provisions of the Code, is 

hereby approved. 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ______ day of __________, 2011. 

 

 

 

 

    _________________________________ 

    Cathy S. Barnette, 

    Council President 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

________________________________ 

David L. Cohen, 

City Clerk, MMC 

84



RESOLUTION 2011 - 79 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 
Patrol 955 2002 SPEED MONITOR RADAR TRAILER 10327 
SRT 1208 1997 FORD SUPER DUTY AMBULANCE 1FDLF47F3VEC67023 

Patrol 100 2000 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W5YX173419 
    

    
    
    

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2011. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

85



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2011-80 

 

 

 AN ORDINANCE RESCINDING HIRING FREEZE ENACTED DECEMBER 20, 2010 

 

 

WHEREAS,  Ordinance 2010-71 imposed a hiring freeze whereby approval by the City 
Council is required in order to advertise and fill positions vacated; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered such approval process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the Mayor should be given the authority 
to evaluate the personnel requirements within the several city departments to include, but 
not be limited to, the advertising and filling of budgeted vacated positions in order to 
maintain basic operating requirements. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: 
 
     1)  The hiring freeze imposed by Ordinance 2010-71 is hereby rescinded; AND 
 

2) The Mayor is hereby authorized to advertise and fill budgeted vacated positions in 
order to maintain basic operating requirements of the City; AND 

 
3) Such authority is not intended to include new positions, but only to maintain staffing 

levels as authorized by the budget. AND 
 

4) Any and all new positions not included in the budget shall be filled only upon the 
express approval of the City Council. 

 
 
Approved and adopted on this the ______ day of ___________, 2011. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Cathy Barnette, Council President 
 
       
      ____________________________________ 
      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
                            ________ ____  
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

86



 

ORDINANCE 2011-81 

 

 AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET 

 

WHEREAS,  the Mayor of the City of Daphne has submitted to the City Council a budget 
for Fiscal Year 2012 which begins October 1, 2011 and ends September 30, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered such proposed budget; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council believes that the proposed budget is a viable spending plan 
for the City during the next fiscal year; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City’s procedures require the adoption of the budget by Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS,  if the amounts budgeted for departmental operating items or purposes are 
not required to be utilized for such items or purposes, then these amounts may be 
expended for other departmental items or purposes, provided that the total amount of the 
adopted budget is not exceeded. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2012 budget as attached hereto and made a part 
hereof for Fiscal Year 2012 beginning October 1, 2011 and ending September 30, 2012 is 
hereby approved.   
 
 
Approved and adopted on this the ______ day of ___________, 2011. 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Cathy Barnette, Council President 

 
 
       
      ____________________________________ 
      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
                            ____________  
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 

87



ORDINANCE 2011-82 
 
 

Mobile Bay National Estuary Program 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget is being considered by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 budget does not include an appropriation to the 
Mobile Bay National Estuary Program (MBNEP); and 
 
WHEREAS,  the MBNEP is instrumental in addressing environmental challenges in 
Daphne through its various programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to make a $10,000 contribution to the MBNEP. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds  from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a 
part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget in the amount of $10,000 for a contribution to 
the MBNEP.  Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to execute an agreement, on 
behalf of the City of Daphne, as necessary for such purpose.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

88


	AGENDA - November 21 Agenda.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - November 7.pdf
	Council Minutes - Special Called - November 14.pdf
	Council Work Session Minutes - November 14.pdf
	Council Minutes - Special Called - November 16.pdf
	Public Hearing Info - TEFRA.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes.pdf
	Public Safety Minutes november 9 2011.pdf
	Backup to Public Safety Minutes.pdf
	Environmental Advisory Board Nominee - John Peterson Resume.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	Utility Board Minutes.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Toursim Grant 2012.pdf
	Parade Permits.pdf
	Letter to  Congressman Jo Bonner - Oil Spill.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-78 - RES - Mercy Medical - TEFRAAPPROVAL2011.pdf
	2011-79 - RES - LIST-GOVDEALS COM               .pdf
	2011-80 -  ORD - Rescind Hiring Freeze.pdf
	2011-81 - ORD -  Adopt 2012 Budget.pdf
	2011-82 -  ORD - Mobile Bay NEP.pdf



